# **LOCH LINDEN BYLAWS**

Version Number: 2.1

Version Date: 04/24/2022

# **BY-LAWS**

# Loch Linden Property Owners Association (Herein called the Association)

The Association was formed as a non-stock, non-profit corporation for the purpose of providing an organizational framework for cohesive community efforts by and for the benefit of the owners and residents of Loch Linden, a residential subdivision of Warren County, Virginia. The Association is to provide for the necessary operation, administration and government of Loch Linden as a community; and is also to provide for machinery for the interpretation, application, administration and enforcement of certain restrictions and covenants affecting all lots in this subdivision. It is also to provide for the attainment of cultural, esthetic, recreational and general civic advantages for its members.

Whenever herein the term "lot" is used, it shall be deemed to mean, unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, a numbered residential building lot shown on a plat of Loch Linden recorded in the Clerk's office of the Circuit Court of Warren County, Virginia in Deed book 200 at pages 721 through 728. Any reference to "restrictions" or "covenants" shall, unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, be deemed to mean the restrictions and covenants imposed upon residential building lots in Loch Linden by the Deed of Dedication recorded in the aforesaid Clerk's office in Deed book 200 at pages 714 through 728 which Deed of Dedication is hereby expressly ratified and adopted by the Association.

# **VERSION HISTORY**

Version Number	Implemented By	Revision Date	Approved By	Approval Date	Description of Change
1.0 Initial Issue	Previous Board	1973-9/4/2021	Previous Board	All dates prior to 9/5/2021	This document had no configuration management controls in place prior to Version 2. Previous versions valid from Loch Linden Incorporation date through 9/5/2021 had changes made at various unknown dates.
2.0	Shawn Smith	09/05/2021	2021-2022 Board of Directors	09/05/2021	Updated format to include Table of Contents, track changes via this version history table, versions, dates, references.  Section 5.2: Changed, "domiciled in Loch Linden." to "domiciled in the town of Linden, VA where Loch Linden is located."  Section 6.2: Changed, "domiciled in Loch Linden" to "domiciled in the town of Linden, VA where Loch Linden, VA where Loch Linden is located."
2.1	Shawn Smith	04/24/2022	2021-2022 Board of Directors	04/24/2022	Section 8.1: Changed annual fee amount from four hundred and twenty-five (\$425) to five hundred and twenty-five (\$525).

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1. ARTICLE 1: OFFICES	5
1.1.Principle Office	5
1.2.Registered Office	5
1.3.Other Offices	5
2. ARTICLE 2: MEMBERSHIP	5
2.1.General 5	
2.2.Life Tenant and Remaindermen	5
2.3.Trustees5	

2.4.Lessor and Lessee	5
2.5.Other Cases	6
2.6.Transfer of Membership	6
3. ARTICLE 3: RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF MEMBERS	6
3.1.Use of Amenities	6
3.2.Guest Privileges	6
3.3.Charges 6	
3.4.Lessor and Lessee	6
3.5.Other Cases	6
3.6.Transfer of Membership	7
4. ARTICLE 4: MEETINGS OF MEMBERS	7
4.1.Annual Meetings	7
4.2.Special Meetings	7
4.3.Place of Meetings	7
4.4.Notice and Waivers	7
4.5.Quorum7	
4.6.Organization	8
4.7.Business and Order of Business	8
4.8. Voting 8	
5. ARTICLE 5: DIRECTORS	8
5.1.General powers	8
5.2.Number, Term of Office and Qualifications	8
5.3.Election of Directors	9
5.4.Removal	9
5.5.Organization	9
5.6.Place of meeting, etc.	9
5.7.Annual Meetings	9
5.8.Regular Meetings	9
5.9.Special Meetings	9
5.10.Quorum and manner of Acting	10
5.11.Removal	10
5.12.Resignations	10
5.13. Vacancies	10
5.14.Committees	
5.15.Action Without a Meeting	11
6. ARTICLE 6: OFFICERS	11
6.1.Officers 11	
6.2. Election, Term of Office and Qualifications	11

# Loch Linden Bylaws

6.3.Subordinate Officers	11
6.4.Removal	11
6.5.Resignations	11
6.6.Vacancies	12
6.7.President	12
6.8.Vice-Presidents	12
6.9.Treasurer	12
6.10.Secretary	
6.11.Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries	12
7. ARTICLE 7: ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL COMMITTEE	13
7.1.Appointment	13
7.2.Policy Statement	13
7.3.Organization	13
7.4.Fees 13	
8. ARTICLE 8: DUES AND ASSESSMENTS	13
8.1.Dues 13	
8.2.Assessments	13
8.3.Loss of Voting Rights	13
8.4.Collection.	14
8.5.Amendment	14
9. ARTICLE 9: CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DRAFTS, BANK ACCOUNTS, ETC	14
9.1.Execution of Contracts and other Documents	14
9.2.Checks, Drafts, Etc.	14
9.3.Deposits	14
9.4.Maintenance Contract	14
10.ARTICLE 10: MISCELLANEOUS	14
10.1.Seal 14	
10.2.Fiscal Year	15
11.ARTICLE 11: AMENDMENTS	15
11.1.By the Directors	15
11.2.By The Members	15
APPENDIX A: LOCH LINDEN BYLAWS APPROVAL	16
APPENDIX R. REFERENCES	17

# 1. ARTICLE 1: OFFICES

#### 1.1. PRINCIPLE OFFICE

The Principal Office of the Association shall be at such place as the Board of Directors shall from time to time by resolution determine.

#### 1.2. REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of the Association in Virginia (as required by law) shall be at such place as the Board of Directors shall from time to time by resolution determine, and may, but need not be at the principal office of the Association.

#### 1.3. OTHER OFFICES

The Association may, in addition to its principal office, have offices at such other places whether within or without of the Commonwealth of Virginia as the Board of Directors may from time to time appoint or as the business of the Association may require.

# 2. ARTICLE 2: MEMBERSHIP

#### 2.1. GENERAL

There shall be one class of members. Any person, firm, association or corporation having the fee simple ownership of any residential building lot or lots shall automatically be a member of the Association. In any case where any such lot is owned by two persons, firms, associations or corporations jointly, each such joint owner shall be a member of the Association. In the event any such lot is owned by more than two persons, firms, associations or corporations jointly, such joint owners may designate the two owners who will be members, but upon their failure to do so the Board of Directors may make the designation. In no event shall there be more than one vote per lot regardless of the number of members. No member may resign, terminate or forfeit his membership, nor may any member be expelled.

#### 2.2. LIFE TENANT AND REMAINDERMEN

In any case where any lot is held by one or more persons for life with remainder to another or others, only such life tenant or tenants shall be deemed a member or members of the Association until such times as the remaindermen or remaindermen shall come into use, possession and enjoyment of such lot.

#### 2.3. TRUSTEES

Where any lot is held in trust the trustee or trustees, and not any beneficiary, shall be a member or members of the association, except that the beneficial owner or owners shall be deemed a member or members in any case where a lot is held under a deed of trust or title is otherwise transferred only for purposes of securing a debt.

#### 2.4. LESSOR AND LESSEE

As between owner and tenant of any lot, the owner shall be deemed a member of the Association.

#### 2.5. OTHER CASES

In any case involving determination of membership not specifically provided for above, the Board of Directors shall, by resolution, determine which person or persons having an interest in any lot shall be deemed a member or members of the Association.

#### 2.6. TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP

No member may transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of his membership except upon (i) the transfer of legal title to the member's lot to the transferee; (ii) the presentation of evidence of such transfer in such form as the Board of Directors may require; and (iii) written notice of such fact given to the Secretary of the Association setting forth the name and mailing address of the transferee and such other information as the Board of Directors may require

# 3. ARTICLE 3: RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF MEMBERS

#### 3.1. USE OF AMENITIES

Members shall be entitled to full use of all facilities and amenities provided from time to time by the Association in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws and such rules and regulations as may be adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors.

# 3.2. GUEST PRIVILEGES

Except as may otherwise be provided in these ByLaws, guest privileges shall be extended in accordance with the following provisions:

- (a) The spouse and dependents of a member under the age of 21 shall be entitled to unlimited guest privileges.
- (b) Upon application to the Board of Directors and upon payment of such fees and charges as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, lessees in residence include persons actually occupying a residence in Loch Linden on such permanent basis as the Board of Directors may determine.
- (c) Guests of a member shall be entitled to such use of the facilities of the Association as may be granted from time to time by the Board of Directors, in accordance with applicable rules and regulations. Guests, other than lessees accorded guest privileges under section 3.02 (b), must be accompanied by members when using or visiting the lake and surrounding area.
- (d) Members shall be responsible for all debts and acts committed by their guests.

#### 3.3. CHARGES

The Board of Directors may establish use charges from time to time for the various facilities and amenities provided by the association, and may provide for the payment of such charges either in cash or by credit.

#### 3.4. LESSOR AND LESSEE

As between owner and tenant of any lot, the owner shall be deemed a member of the Association.

# 3.5. OTHER CASES

In any case involving determination of membership not specifically provided for above, the Board of Directors shall, by resolution, determine which person or persons having an interest in any lot shall be deemed a member or members of the Association.

#### 3.6. TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP

No member may transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of his membership except upon (i) the transfer of legal title to the member's lot to the transferee; (ii) the presentation of evidence of such transfer in such form as the Board of Directors may require; and (iii) written notice of such fact given to the Secretary of the Association setting forth the name and mailing address of the transferee and such other information as the Board of Directors may require

# 4. ARTICLE 4: MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

#### 4.1. ANNUAL MEETINGS

The annual meeting of the members of the Association, for the purpose of electing directors for the ensuing year and for the transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting, shall be held on a date fixed by the Board of Directors, between April 1 and June 1 of each year.

#### 4.2. SPECIAL MEETINGS

A special meeting of members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Directors, or by members have one-twentieth of the votes entitled to be cast at such meeting.

#### 4.3. PLACE OF MEETINGS

Each meeting of the members shall be held at (a) the principal office of the association, or (b) such other place in the Commonwealth of Virginia, as may be designated in the notice of such meeting.

#### 4.4. NOTICE AND WAIVERS

Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given, by or at the direction of the officer or other person calling the meeting. Such notice shall state the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in case of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called. A copy thereof shall be delivered personally or mailed with postage prepaid to each member entitled to vote at such meeting; and, if mailed, it should be directed to such member at his address as it appears on the records of the Association. In the case of a special meeting, notice shall be given not less than ten (10) days before such meeting; in the case of an annual meeting, notice shall be given not less than sixty (60) days before the meeting.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a waiver of any notice herein or by law required, if in writing and signed by the person entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time of the event for which notice was required to be given, shall be the equivalent of giving such notice. A member who attends a meeting shall be deemed to have had timely and proper notice of the meeting, unless he attends for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Notice of any adjourned or recessed meeting need not be given.

# 4.5. QUORUM

Except as otherwise provided by law, at any meeting of the members, the presence in person or by proxy of members holding ten percent (10%) of the votes entitled to be cast at such a meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the members present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote may adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place until a quorum is obtained.

# 4.6. ORGANIZATION

At every meeting of the members, The President, or some person appointed by him, or, in the absence of the President, a person chosen by a majority vote of the members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote, shall act as Chairman of the meeting. The Secretary, or any Assistant Secretary, or, in the discretion of the Chairman, any person designated by him, shall act as Secretary of the meeting.

# 4.7. BUSINESS AND ORDER OF BUSINESS

At each meeting of the members such business may be transacted as may properly be brought before such meeting, whether or not such business is sated in the notice of meeting or in a waiver of notice thereof, except as otherwise by law or by these By-Laws expressly provided. The order of business of all meetings of members shall be as determined by the Chairman, but such order of business may be changed by a vote of a majority in voting power of the members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting.

#### **4.8. VOTING**

- (a) Except as otherwise provided by law, by the Articles of Incorporation, or by these By-Laws, each member shall be entitled to vote upon matters to be voted upon by the members. At each meeting of the members held for any purpose, each member entitled to vote thereat shall be entitled to one vote.
- (b) Any member entitled to vote may vote either in person or by proxy duly appointed by an instrument in writing subscribed by such member (or by his attorney thereunto duly authorized) and delivered to the Secretary of the meeting.
- (c) In the case of any lot owned by two or more persons, more than one of whom is a member of the Association, the vote attributable to such lot may be exercised in person or by proxy by any of such members. If more than one of such members owning a single lot shall undertake to exercise the vote attributable thereto at any meeting and they are unable to agree as to how the vote is to be cast, the vote shall be disregarded for all purposes. Members shall be responsible for all debts and acts committed by their guests.
- (d) If a quorum is present, the affirmative vote of a majority in voting power of the members represented at the meeting and entitled to vote on the subject matter shall be the act of the members, unless the vote of a greater number is required by law.

# 5. ARTICLE 5: DIRECTORS

# **5.1. GENERAL POWERS**

The affairs of the Association shall be managed by the Board of Directors, and all corporate powers shall be exercised by the Board of Directors, except as otherwise expressly required by the Articles of Incorporation, by these By-Laws, or by law.

#### 5.2. NUMBER, TERM OF OFFICE AND QUALIFICATIONS

Until changed by an amendment to these By-Laws, the number of Directors shall not be less than five (5) nor more than nine (9). A Board of Directors shall be elected annually in the manner provided in these By-Laws, and each director shall hold office until the annual meeting next following his election and until his successor shall have been elected, or until his sooner, death, resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of Directors by amendment to these By-Laws shall have the

effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. Directors must be members, and must be domiciled in the town of Linden, VA where Loch Linden is located.

# 5.3. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of the members, or, if the election of Directors shall not be held on the day designated for any annual meeting or at any adjournment of such meeting, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a special meeting of the members as soon thereafter as may be. In any election of Directors, a quorum being present, the persons receiving the greatest number of votes shall be the Directors.

#### 5.4. REMOVAL

Any Director may be removed at any time, either with or without cause, by such vote as would suffice for his election, given in person or by proxy at a special meeting of members called expressly for that purpose, at which a quorum will be present.

#### 5.5. ORGANIZATION

At each meeting of the Board of Directors, the President, or, in his absence, a Director chosen by the majority of Directors present, shall act as Chairman. The Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, or, in the discretion of the Chairman, any person appointed by him, shall act as Secretary of the meeting.

# **5.6. PLACE OF MEETING, ETC.**

No member may transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of his membership except upon (i) the The Board of Directors may hold its meetings at such place or places within or without the Commonwealth of Virginia as the Board of Directors may from time to time by resolution determine, or (unless contrary to resolution of the Board of Directors), at such place as shall be specified in the respective notices or waivers of notice thereof.

#### 5.7. ANNUAL MEETINGS

The Board of Directors may meet, without notice of such meeting, for the purpose of organization, the election of officers and the transaction of other business, on the same day as, at the place at which, and as soon as practicable after each annual election of Directors is held. Such annual meeting may be held at any other time or place specified in a notice given as hereinafter provided for special meetings of the Board of Directors, or in a waiver of notice thereof.

#### 5.8. REGULAR MEETINGS

Until changed by an amendment to these By-Laws, the number of Directors shall not be less Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such times and places as may be fixed from time to time by action of the Board of Directors. Notice of any such meeting need not be given.

#### **5.9. SPECIAL MEETINGS**

Special Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held whenever called by the President, or by any two or more Directors. Notice of each such meeting shall be mailed to each Director addressed to him at his residence or usual place of business, at least three (3) days before the date on which the meeting is to be held; or such notice shall be sent to each Director at such place by telegraph, cable, or wireless or be delivered to him personally or by telephone not later than twenty four (24) hours before the time at which the meeting is to be held. Every such notice state the time and place of the meeting. Notice of an adjourned or recessed meeting of the Directors need not be given.

# 5.10. QUORUM AND MANNER OF ACTING

Anything in these By-Laws or in any resolution adopted by the Board of Directors to the contrary notwithstanding, proper notice of any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be deemed to have been given to any director if such notice shall be waived by him in writing (including telegraph, cable or wireless) before or after the meeting. A director who attends a meeting shall be deemed to have had the timely and proper notice thereof, unless he attends for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

#### 5.11. REMOVAL

A majority of the number of Directors at the time fixed by these By-Laws shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The act of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum be had. The Directors shall act only as Board and the individual Directors shall have no power as such.

#### **5.12. RESIGNATIONS**

Any Director may resign at any time, orally, or in writing, by notifying the President or the Secretary. Such resignations shall take effect at the time therein specified; and, unless otherwise specified, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

#### 5.13. VACANCIES

Any Vacancy in the Board of Directors, caused by death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause (other than an increase by more than two in the number of directors), may be filled for the unexpired term by the majority vote of the remaining directors then in office, though less than a quorum, at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors.

#### 5.14. COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors, may, by resolution adopted by a vote of a majority of the number of Directors at the time fixed by these By-Laws, designate three or more of their number, including in each case the President, as an Executive Committee. While the Board of Directors is not in session, the Executive Committee, if there then be such a committee, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Association, subject to the restrictions hereinafter set out and further subject to such limitations upon its authority as the Board may, from time to time, impose.

In addition to an Executive Committee, the Board of Directors may, by resolution of a majority of the Directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is present, designate other committees of limited authority, each such committee to consist of three (3) or more directors or members of the association.

A majority of any such committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority of those present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee. Members of any such committee shall act only as a committee and the individual members shall have no power as such.

The Board of Directors shall have the power at any time to change the members of, fill vacancies in, and discharge any such committee, either with or without cause. The appointment of any Director to any such committee, if not sooner terminated, shall automatically terminate upon the expiration of his term as a Director or upon the earlier cessation of his membership on the Board of Directors.

#### 5.15. ACTION WITHOUT A MEETING

Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Directors, or which may be taken at any meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Directors, or all of the members of the committee of Directors, as the case may be. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as an unanimous vote.

# 6. ARTICLE 6: OFFICERS

#### 6.1. OFFICERS

The Officers of the Association shall be a President, a Treasurer, and a Secretary, and where elected, one or more Vice Presidents, and the holders of such other offices as may be established in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this Article. Any two or more Offices may be held by the same person; provided only, that the same person shall not hold the Offices of both President and Secretary.

# 6.2. ELECTION, TERM OF OFFICE AND QUALIFICATIONS

The Officers shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors, as soon as practicable after the annual election of Directors in each year. Each officer should hold Office until his successor shall have been duly chosen and shall qualify, or until his death, resignation or removal in the manner hereinafter provided. The President shall be chosen from among the Directors, but no other officer need be a Director. All Officers must be members of the Association, and domiciled in the town of Linden, VA where Loch Linden is located.

#### 6.3. SUBORDINATE OFFICERS

The Board of Directors may from time to time establish Officers in addition to those designated in Section 1 with such duties as are provided in these By-Laws, or as they may from time to time determine

#### 6.4. REMOVAL

Any Officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by resolution declaring such removal to be in the best interests of the Association and adopted at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors by a majority of the directors then in office.

#### 6.5. RESIGNATIONS

Any Officer may resign at any time by giving oral or written notice to the Board of Directors or the President or the Secretary. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time therein specified; and, unless otherwise specified, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

# 6.6. VACANCIES

A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by the Board of Directors.

#### 6.7. PRESIDENT

The President shall be a director and shall be the chief executive and administrative officer of the Corporation and have general supervision of the business of the Corporation, subject, however, to the control of the Board of Directors and of any duly authorized committee of directors. In general, he shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to him by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of directors, and shall have such other powers and authorities as are elsewhere in these By-Laws conferred upon him.

#### 6.8. VICE-PRESIDENTS

The Vice Presidents shall perform such duties as from time to time may be assigned to them by the Board of Directors, or by any duly authorized committee of directors or by the President, and shall have such other powers and authorities as are elsewhere in these By-Laws conferred upon them.

#### 6.9. TREASURER

Except as may otherwise be specifically provided by the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee thereof, the Treasurer shall have the custody of, and be responsible for, all funds and securities; receive and receipt for money paid to the Association from any source whatsoever; deposit all such monies in the name of the Association in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws; against proper vouchers, cause such funds to be disbursed on the authorized depositories of the Association, regularly enter or cause to be entered in books to be kept by him or under his direction, full and adequate accounts of all money received and paid by him for account of the Association; in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer.

#### 6.10. SECRETARY

The Secretary shall act as the Secretary of all meetings of the members and the Board of Directors, shall keep the minutes thereof in the proper book or books to be provided for that purpose; shall see that all notices required to be given by the Association are duly given and served; shall be the custodian of the seal of the Association and shall affix the seal or cause it to be affixed to all documents the execution of which on behalf of the Association under its corporate seal is duly authorized; shall have charge of the books, records and papers of the Association relating to its organization and management as a corporation; shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary.

#### 6.11. ASSISTANT TREASURERS AND ASSISTANT SECRETARIES

Assistant Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries shall perform such duties as shall be assigned to them by the Treasurer and by the Secretary, respectively, or by the Board of Directors, or by any duly authorized committee of Directors, or by the President; and shall have such other powers and authorities as are elsewhere in these By-Laws conferred upon them.

# 7. ARTICLE 7: ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL COMMITTEE

#### 7.1. APPOINTMENT

The Board of Directors shall appoint an Environmental Control Committee for the purpose of exercising rights vested in the Association with respect to approval of plans submitted by members covering the erection of any building or other structure on any lot as provided in the restrictions.

#### 7.2. POLICY STATEMENT

The Environmental Control Committee shall publish, and from time to time revise and update, a statement of the general policies and criteria which will be followed by it in passing upon plans submitted by members.

#### 7.3. ORGANIZATION

The Environmental Control Committee may adopt such rules and regulations as it may deem proper for the conduct of its business and the formalization of its determinations. A formal record of its proceedings shall be kept.

#### **7.4. FEES**

A fee of not to exceed \$50.00 may be assessed by the Environmental Control Committee against any member submitting a plan or plans for its approval, which fee shall be payable into the general funds of the Association

# 8. ARTICLE 8: DUES AND ASSESSMENTS

#### **8.1. DUES**

The Board of Directors shall, from time to time, establish such membership dues as it may deem necessary for the adequate performance by the Association of its functions, including the annual fee of five hundred and twenty-five dollars (\$525.00) to provide funds for the maintenance of the lake and roads in the subdivision as provided in the aforementioned Deed of Dedication. Dues may be made payable at such intervals as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine. Dues shall be assessed on a per lot basis.

#### 8.2. ASSESSMENTS

Notwithstanding Section 8.01, the Board of Directors may make a special assessment or charge against any member or members for special services rendered under the limitations provided in the recorded Deed of Dedication. The Board is expressly authorized to fix a fee to be imposed upon the owner of any lot on which improvements are being constructed to cover the cost of damage likely to be caused to the roads of Loch Linden by heavy construction equipment and vehicles, upon such terms and conditions as the Board deems appropriate.

#### 8.3. LOSS OF VOTING RIGHTS

Any member who shall not have paid any dues or assessments payable by him within thirty (30) days after the same shall be due and payable, shall not be entitled to vote as a member while such arrearage continues.

# 8.4. COLLECTION

The Association shall be entitled to collect dues and assessments owing it by legal process in any case where it is so provided by contract or covenant to which the Association is a party or of which it is a beneficiary.

#### 8.5. AMENDMENT

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 11 of these By-Laws dealing with amendments hereto generally, no provisions of this Article 8 of these By-Laws nor any other provisions hereof dealing with members' financial obligations to the Association, shall be amended except by the members at a special meeting called for that purpose, or at an annual meeting where notice of the proposed change accompanied the notice of the meeting, upon the affirmative vote of more than seventy five percent (75%) in voting power of the members present or represented by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present. This Section 5 of Article 8, however, shall be amended only upon the affirmative vote, given in like manner, or more than ninety percent (90%) in voting power of the members present or represented by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present.

# 9. ARTICLE 9: CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DRAFTS, BANK ACCOUNTS, ETC.

#### 9.1. EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

The Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of directors, except as by law or by these By-Laws otherwise required, may authorize any Officer or Officers, agent or agents, in the name of and on behalf of the Association to enter into any contract or execute any deed or other instrument, and any such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

# 9.2. CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.

All checks, drafts and other orders for payment of money out of funds of the Association shall be signed on behalf of the Association in such a manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors or of any duly authorized committee of directors.

#### 9.3. DEPOSITS

The funds of the Association not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the order of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors or any duly authorized committee of directors may from time to time select

#### 9.4. MAINTENANCE CONTRACT

The Board of Directors shall have the authority, in its discretion, to arrange to have the maintenance and care-taking functions of the Association, or any part thereof, performed for the Association by a third party or parties pursuant to contract. Any such third party may be member of or may be controlled by one or more members of the Association.

# 10. ARTICLE 10: MISCELLANEOUS

#### 10.1. SEAL

The corporate seal shall contain the name of the Association, the year of its creation, and the words "Corporate Seal, Virginia", and shall be in such form as may be approved by the Board of Directors.

# 10.2. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall end on the last day of December in each year.

# 11. ARTICLE 11: AMENDMENTS

# 11.1. BY THE DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors, by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all directors then serving, shall have the power to make, alter, amend or repeal the By-Laws of the Association at any regular or special meeting of the Board. This power shall not be exercised by the Executive Committee.

#### 11.2. BY THE MEMBERS

At any annual or special meeting, By-Laws may be adopted, and all By-Laws shall be subject to amendment, alteration or repeal, by a majority of the members entitled to vote. Pursuant to resolution adopted by a majority of the members entitled to vote, the members may provide that certain By-Laws by them adopted, approved or designated may not be amended, altered or repealed except by a certain specified vote of the members.

# **Appendix A: Loch Linden Bylaws Approval**

The undersigned acknowledge that they have reviewed the **Loch Linden Bylaws** and agree with the information presented within this document. Changes to these **Bylaws** will be coordinated with, and approved by the current Board of Directors.

Name:	Kris Lasley	Date:	4/24/2022
Title:	President		
Name:	Chris Lee	Date:	4/24/2022
Title:	Vice President		
Name:	Nancy Handl	Date:	4/24/2022
Title:	Secretary		
Name:	Robert Seaman	Date:	4/24/2022
Title:	Treasurer		
Name:	Raymond Roop	Date:	4/24/2022
Title:	Member-at-Large		
Name:	Kevin Reilly	Date:	4/24/2022
Title:	Member-at-Large		
Name:	Shawn Smith	Date:	4/24/2022
Title:	Member-at-Large		

# **APPENDIX B: REFERENCES**

The following table summarizes the documents referenced in this document.

Document Name	Version	Version Date	Location
LLPOA Deed of Dedication	Initial Issue	4/27/1973	Loch Linden POA Google Drive: https:// drive.google.com/file/d/ 1CHE4- NNcdWNJkjJ5BsKR70hbXZ JLxzKD/view?usp=sharing
LLPOA Articles of Incorporation	Initial Issue	6/14/1990	Loch Linden POA Google Drive: https:// drive.google.com/file/d/ 19PgmxJnB8TENhWBrUAP VsVmc8LLMtp9O/view? usp=sharing
MAP Lot Assignment for Deed of Declaration	Initial Issue	4/27/1973	Loch Linden POA Google Drive: https:// drive.google.com/file/d/ 1EGPbLPsmtU3HtqQqqF5e hqf0kQOm-hOh/view? usp=sharing